
1. CALL TO ORDER

2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT
“We respectfully acknowledge that we are on the traditional territory of the Anishinaabe Peoples, 
in the Robinson-Huron and Williams Treaties areas. We wish to acknowledge the long history of First 
Nations and Métis Peoples in Ontario and show respect to the neighbouring Indigenous 
communities. We offer our gratitude for their care of, and teachings about, our earth and our 
relations. May we continue to honour these teachings.”

3. ROLL CALL

4. DISCLOSURE OF MONETARY AND GENERAL NATURE THEREOF

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

6. DELEGATIONS TO COUNCIL

7. ADOPTION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS OPEN SESSION MEETINGS OF COUNCIL
7.1 Regular Council meeting of October 3, 2023

8. MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

9. MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM APPOINTED BOARDS
9.1 The Police Services Board Meeting minutes of September 25, 2023
9.2 District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board CAO’s Report for October 2023

10. STAFF REPORTS
10.1 Treasurer/Director of Corporate Services, B. Robinson – Pay Day Policy
10.2 Public Works Foreman, T. Tennant – Sweezy Street Traffic
10.3 Public Works Foreman, T. Tennant – Main Street storm water ditch
10.4 Clerk, A. Quinn – Police Background Check Policy
10.5 Clerk, A. Quinn – Flag Policy

11. BY-LAWS
11.1 Bylaw 2023-24 Zoning Amendment (137 Main Street, Powassan)
11.2 Bylaw 2023-25 Official Plan Amendment

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
12.1 Clerk, A. Quinn – Pool Inspection Report
12.2 Councillor Hall – Municipal Facility Renumeration

AGENDA 
Regular Council Meeting 

Tuesday, October 17, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. 
Powassan Council Chambers (Firehall Station 1)



 
 
12.3 Councillor Hall – Trout Creek Community Centre Plan 
 

13. NEW BUSINESS 
 

14. CORRESPONDENCE 
14.1 Bonfield Township – Remembrance Day Service Invitation  
 

15. ADDENDUM 
 

16. NOTICE OF SCHEDULE OF COUNCIL AND BOARD MEETINGS 
 

17. CLOSED SESSION 
17.1 Adoption of Closed Session Minutes of October 3, 2023 
17.2 Labour Relations – Section 239(2)(d) of the Municipal Act and under Section 9(4)(d) of the 
         Procedural Bylaw – matters regarding labour relations or employee negotiations. 
17.3 Labour Relations – Section 239(2)(d) of the Municipal Act and under Section 9(4)(d) of the 
         Procedural Bylaw – matters regarding labour relations or employee negotiations. 
17.4 Legal Matters – Section 239(2)(f) of the Municipal Act and under Section 9(4)(f) of the    
         Procedural Bylaw – advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications  
         necessary for that purpose. 
17.5 Legal Matters – Section 239(2)(f) of the Municipal Act and under Section 9(4)(f) of the    
         Procedural Bylaw – advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications  
         necessary for that purpose. 
17.6 Identifiable Individuals – Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act and under Section 9(4)(b) of the 
         Procedural Bylaw – matters regarding an identifiable individual, including municipal or local  
         board employees.  
 
 

18. MOTION TO ADJOURN 



 

   
  

    
Regular Council Meeting 
Tuesday, October 3, 2023, at 7:00 pm 
Powassan Council Chambers 

   
Present:  Peter McIsaac, Mayor 
   Markus Wand, Deputy Mayor 
   Randy Hall, Councillor 
   Leo Patey, Councillor 
 
Staff:   Allison Quinn, Acting Clerk 
   Brayden Robinson, Treasurer/Director of Corporate Services 
 
Absent, 
With Regrets: Dave Britton, Councillor 
    
Presentation: Tammy MacKenzie and JJ Blower - District of Parry Sound Social  

Services Administration Board 
 
Disclosure of Monetary Interest and General Nature Thereof:   
Mayor McIsaac Item 12.2 and 13.1  Employer named in Item 
  

  
2023-298 Moved by: M. Wand  Seconded by: R. Hall 

That the agenda of the Regular Council Meeting of October 3, 2023,  
be approved, with the following addition: 
15.1 Planning Report – Hughes, 137 Main Street          Carried  
 

2023-299 Moved by: R. Hall  Seconded by: L. Patey 
That the minutes of the Regular meeting of council of September 19, 2023,  
be adopted.                    Carried   
              

2023-300 Moved by: L. Patey  Seconded by: M. Wand  
That the minutes of the Recreation Committee meeting of June 28, 2023, 
be received.                         Carried       
 

2023-301 Moved by: M. Wand  Seconded by: R. Hall 
That the minutes from the Golden Sunshine Municipal Non-Profit Housing  
Corporation committee meeting of August 22, 2023, be received.             Carried 
    

2023-302 Moved by: R. Hall  Seconded by: L. Patey 
That the memo from Treasurer/Director of Corporate Services B. Robinson, regarding the  
Q3 Budget Variance Update as of September 30, 2023, be received.                  Carried    
 

2023-303 Moved by: L. Patey  Seconded by: M. Wand 
That the report from Fire Chief B. Cox, regarding North Bay Central Ambulance 
Communications Centre Cancellation of Dispatching be received; 
 
 



 

 
 
AND FURTHER that staff be directed to request an extension of services and continue to 
investigate alternative solutions.                       Carried               

 
2023-304 Moved by: R. Hall  Seconded by: M. Wand 

That the report from Treasurer/Director of Corporate Services B. Robinson, regarding  
Meadowview Maintenance contract, be received;  
 
AND FURTHER that Council decline to enter into an agreement with the Meadowview for  
property maintenance services.                  Carried
                          

2023-305 Moved by: M. Wand  Seconded by: L. Patey 
  That Bylaw 2023-20, being a Bylaw to appoint a Clerk, 
 
  Be READ a FIRST and SECOND time on the 19th day of September 2023,  
 
  And to be READ a THIRD and FINAL time and considered passed a such in open  
  Council on this 3rd day of October 2023.            Carried 
                
2023-306  Moved by: L. Patey  Seconded by: R. Hall      
  That Bylaw 2023-24, being a Bylaw to amend Bylaw 2003-38, as amended, the Zoning  
  Bylaw  for the Municipality of Powassan with respect to lands located in Part Lot 15, 

Concession 14, RP 42R-13092, Municipality of Powassan (137 Main Street, Powassan);  
 
  Be READ a FIRST and SECOND time on this the 3rd day of October 2023, 
 
  And to be READ a THIRD and FINAL time and considered passed as such in open  
  Council on the 17th day of October 2023.  
       
  Recorded Vote: Requested by Councillor L. Patey. 
 
  Councillor L. Patey: Nay 
  Councillor R. Hall: Yea 
  Councillor M. Wand: Yea 
  Mayor P. McIsaac: Yea             Carried 
 
2023-307  Moved by: R. Hall  Seconded by: M. Wand 
  That Bylaw 2023-25, being a Bylaw to amend the Official Plan of the Municipality  
  of Powassan; 
 
  Be READ a FIRST and SECOND time on this the 3rd day of October 2023, 
 
  And to Be READ a THIRD and FINAL time and adopted by Council on the 17th day  
  of October 2023.                         Carried 
 
2023-308  Moved by: M. Wand  Seconded by: L. Patey 
  At the Regular Council meeting of September 19, 2023, Council approved Bylaw 2023-22 

and franchise agreement and authorizes the submission thereof to the Ontario Energy Board 
for approval pursuant to the provisions of Section 9 of the Municipal Franchises Act; and, 

 
   
 



 

 
  FURTHER that this Council requests that the Ontario Energy Board make an Order declaring  
  and directing that the assent of the municipal electors to the Bylaw and franchise agreement 

pertaining to the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan is not necessary pursuant to  
  the provisions of Section 9(4) of the Municipal Franchises Act.                    Carried 
 
2023-309  Moved by: R. Hall  Seconded by: L. Patey 
  That the information from Councillor R. Hall, regarding snowmobile trails in Powassan,  
  be received.               Carried 
 
2023-310  Moved by: L. Patey  Seconded by: M. Wand 
  That the information from EXP Services Inc., regarding the Notice of Study Commencement 

for the resurfacing of Highway 11 Northbound and Southbound, be received.      Carried 
             
2023-311  Moved by: M. Wand  Seconded by: L. Patey 

That the information from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing regarding the  
2022 Financial Information Return Award, be received.         Carried 

 
2023-312  Moved by: M. Wand  Seconded by: R. Hall 

That the correspondence from the Ontario Provincial Police regarding the Municipal  
Policing 2024 Annual Billing Statement, be received.          Carried 

 
2023-313  Moved by: L. Patey  Seconded by: R. Hall 

Whereas citizens have brought forward concerns regarding the speed of traffic on Sweezy 
Street, 
 
Be it resolved that Council directs staff to investigate traffic speed and the implementation  
of a stop sign or speed bump on Sweezy Street and prepare a report for the next Regular 
Meeting of Council on October 17, 2023.                                      Carried 

 
2023-314  Moved by: R. Hall  Seconded by: L. Patey 
  Whereas there is currently no electrical outlets or adequate lighting at the Memorial  
  Park gazebo,  
 
  Be it resolved that Council directs staff to investigate steps as well as cots, for providing 

electricity and lighting for Memorial Park, and prepare a report for the next Regular Meeting 
of Council on October 17, 2023.            Carried 

 
2023-315     Moved by: R. Hall  Seconded by: M. Wand 
    That the report dated September 26, 2023, from Planscape regarding 137 Main Street, be 

received.               Carried 
 
2023-316     Moved by: L. Patey  Seconded by: R. Hall 
    That Council now adjourns to closed session at 8:24 p.m. to discuss: 
 
    18.1 Adoption of Closes Session Minutes of September 5, 2023 

         18.2     Identifiable Individuals – Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act and under Section 
               9(4)(b) of the Procedural Bylaw – matters regarding an identifiable individual,  
               including municipal of local board employees.         Carried 
 
  
 
 



 

  
 
 2023-317     Moved by: R. Hall  Seconded by: L. Patey 
     That Council now reconvenes to regular session at 8:41 p.m.   Carried 
 
 2023-318     Moved by: L. Patey  Seconded by: M. Wand 
     That Council now adjourns at 8:41 p.m.      Carried

     
    

 
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Mayor       Clerk   









  

 

Chief Administrative Officer’s  

Report 

 

October 2023 

Mission Statement 

To foster healthier communities by economically providing 

caring human services that empower and enable the  

people we serve to improve their quality of life.  



2 

 
Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Facebook Pages 

A friendly reminder to follow our Facebook pages! 

 District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board  

 Esprit Place Family Resource Centre  

 EarlyON Child and Family Centres in the District of Parry Sound  

 The Meadow View  

Human Resources Update 

This month we are celebrating the retirement of three long-standing DSSAB employees: 

• Childcare Supervisor - Fairview ELCCC; 28 years of service 
• Counsellor - Esprit Place; 30 years of service 
• Supervisor - Income Support; 38 years of service 

 
We wish all three the very best in retirement and thank them for their dedicated service to the DSSAB.  

We also welcomed ten new employees to the organization throughout the last quarter.  

After receiving feedback from employees that the current program was not meeting their needs, we are mak-
ing a change to our Employee Assistance Program (EAP).  The EAP is a voluntary and confidential service, to 
help employees and their family members (dependents), who have personal concerns that affect their person-
al well-being and/or work performance.  

The new EAP offers the following resources that our staff have been looking for:  
• Online and in-person counselling sessions 
• An industry-leading mobile app that allows staff to book their appointments and connect with a coun-

sellor in a timely fashion 
• The app also has additional resources such as a newsfeed, well-being content and self-directed pro-

grams 
• 24/7 crisis support 
• Management support such as support for managing employees (depression, bullying, sexual harass-

ment), employee performance, manager personal growth, and workplace safety 
 

The EAP is one of many ways the DSSAB supports the well-being of our employees.  

https://www.facebook.com/PSDSSAB
https://www.facebook.com/Esprit-Place-Family-Resource-Centre-123640529568638
https://www.facebook.com/ParrySoundOEYCFC
https://www.facebook.com/TheMeadowViewNOAH/


3 

 

DSSAB LinkedIN Stats  

https://bit.ly/2YyFHlE  

MAR 

2023 

APR 

2023 

MAY 

2023 

JUNE 

2023 

AUG 

2023 

SEPT 

2023 

Total Followers 399 410 416 434 437 441 

Search Appearances (in last 7 days) 308 245 228 281 185 115 

Total Page Views 31 30 41 56 33 22 

Post Impressions 929 697 546 786 182 558 

Total Unique Visitors 17 11 19 25 19 14 

DSSAB Twitter Stats 

https://twitter.com/psdssab 

MAR 

2023 

APR 

2023 

MAY 

2023 

JUNE 

2023 

AUG 

2023 

SEPT 

2023 

Total Tweets 13 8 8 10 N/A 19 

Total Impressions 300 300 291 301 56 229 

Total Profile Visits 217 130 137 128 N/A 135 

Total Followers 28 27 27 30 31 32 

Esprit Place Family Resource  

Centre 

MAR 

2023 

APR 

2023 

MAY 

2023 

JUNE 

2023 

AUG 

2023 

SEPT 

2023 

Total Page Followers 132 131 131 131 132 133 

Post Reach this Period (# of people who 

saw post) 
124 116 29 203 62 55 

Post Engagement this Period (# of  

reactions, comments, shares) 
7 71 1 2 1 2 

District of Parry Sound Social  

Services Administration Board 

MAR 

2023 

APR 

2023 

MAY 

2023 

JUNE 

2023 

AUG 

2023 

SEPT 

2023 

Total Page Followers 462 471 474 478 490 500 

Post Reach this Period (# of people who 

saw post) 
7,891 4,460 3,789 4,010 2,249 4,112 

Post Engagement this Period (# of  

reactions, comments, shares) 
757 505 241 692 234 428 

Facebook Stats 

Social Media 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

https://bit.ly/2YyFHlE
https://twitter.com/psdssab


4 

 

DSSAB in the Community 

Total Children Utilizing Directly Operated Child Care in the District 

August 2023 

Age Group 
Fairview 

ELCC 

First Steps 

ELCC 

Highlands 

ELCC 

Waubeek 

ELCC 
HCCP Total 

Infant 

(0-18M) 
0 0 3 1 20 24 

Toddler 

(18-30M) 
15 8 9 12 25 69 

Preschool 

(30M-4Y) 
18 15 16 42 43 134 

# of Active 

Children 
33 23 28 55 88 227 

Licensed Child Care Programs 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Municipal Presentations 

On September 29th, our Communications Officer and I attended the District of Parry Sound Municipal Asso-
ciation meeting in Dunchurch, where we set up a table showcasing information about all DSSAB programs 
and services.  There were approximately 100 people in attendance, primarily elected officials, Ministries, 
Agencies and municipal staff from all municipalities in the District of Parry Sound.  

This month, myself and our Communications Officer, continued our road trip with presentations to several 
municipalities where we outlined the DSSAB’s programs and services and explaining to members of each 
Council how we can help members of their community. All Councils expressed their appreciation for the 
work done by DSSAB staff. These presentations were part of a series of Municipal presentations taking place 
over the next year.  

Municipalities receiving presentations in September included:  

• McKellar – September 19, 2023 

• South River – September 20, 2023 

• Tri-Council of Sundridge, Strong & Joly – September 25, 2023 



5 

 

All four Early Learning and Child Care Centres were operating at or slightly below the Ministry of Education 
licensed capacity for each program so that staff were able to take summer vacations and to help mitigate the 
challenges of securing casual staff to cover the regulated program ratios. Many preschool children prepared 
to make the transition to school in September and the older toddlers were moved to the preschool rooms.  
The Ministry of Education Licensing Advisor has been out to the centre-based programs to complete the li-
censing process for the 2023/2024 year, and we have received positive results showing we are in full compli-
ance with the Child Care and Early Years Act.  Some programs brought in community partners over the sum-
mer months and introduced more cultural diversity through visual displays and introducing a variety of mate-
rials for the children to explore. 

The Home Child Care Program has 19 active providers across the district and has 2 potential homes going 
through the approval process. 

Location Enrollment Primary Secondary 

Mapleridge After School N/A   

Mapleridge Before School N/A   

Mapleridge Summer Program 13   

St. Gregory’s After School N/A   

Sundridge Centennial After School N/A   

Land of Lakes After School N/A   

Home Child Care 46 19 1 

# of Active Children 59 19 1 

School Age Programs 

August 2023 

The Mapleridge Summer Program was very successful this year remaining at capacity.  The children enjoyed 
exploring the Powassan community and engaging in interactive play-based activities based on their interests 
and outdoor environment.  The staff included creative opportunities where a variety of art mediums were ex-
plored, science experiments designed, and excursions were taken. 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 



6 

 

Age Group EarlyON 
Licensed 

ELCC’s 

Monthly 

Total 
YTD Total Waitlist 

New  

Referrals 
Discharges 

Infant 

(0-18M) 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Toddler 

(18-30M) 
1 9 10 16 0 0 0 

Preschool 

(30M-4Y) 
6 35 41 54 1 1 1 

School Age (4Y+) 4 26 30 39 1 0 1 

Monthly Total 11 70 81 - 2 1 2 

YTD Total 12 78 - 108 30 22 10 

Statistics for the ISS Program have remained unchanged for the month of August.  The Resource Consultants 
worked with all the child care programs across the district and summer recreational programs to assist with 
ensuring every child had the opportunity to participate to their fullest potential in the summer activities.   

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Directly Operated Child Care Waitlist by Program 

August 2023 

As shown in the above chart, the blue bar reflects families that are currently seeking care and space is una-
vailable while the red bar indicates families that have requested a space after December 31, 2023.   
Many families are calling reporting that they are newly expecting and wanting to be added to the waitlists for 
2025.  Requests for infant spaces continue to be on the rise.  Many preschoolers have moved on to school 
and toddlers will be moving to the preschool classrooms which will open spaces in the toddler rooms for new 
intakes to come from the current waitlists. Waubeek has had the largest transition to school cohort of 27 chil-
dren moving on and has been moving toddlers into the vacated spaces this past month.  Even with this large 
transition, there is still a waitlist for infant and toddler spaces in all the directly operated programs. 

Inclusion Support Services 

August 2023 



7 

 

EarlyON Child and Family Programs 

August 2023 

Activity August YTD 

Number of Children Attending 2,756 7,654 

Number of New Children Attending 153 419 

Number of Adults Attending 1,575 4,683 

Number of Virtual Programming Events 5 32 

Number of Engagements through Social Media 3,431 5,843 

Number of Views through Social Media 27,920 76,786 

The EarlyON team assembled “Getting Ready for Kindergarten” bags, 25 of which were distributed to families 
across the district and another 25 bags were provided to the ISS Resource Consultants to give to families on 
the caseload that were attending Kindergarten in the fall. 

This summer, the EarlyON team was able to provide summer pop-up programs in Callander, Emsdale, Foley, 
Trout Creek, Magnetawan, and Powassan with a total of 79 adults and 137 children attending.  We recon-
nected with returning families as well as new families who have recently moved to the area. 

The Moms-to-Moms group continues to be a supportive program at the Parry Sound Community Hub for the 
new moms in the community.  Over the summer we had 39 moms and 62 children in attendance. 

EarlyON Facilitators prepared for the fall reopening of programs in Humphrey, Emsdale, Orrville, Magneta-
wan, Carling, Powassan, Foley, Sundridge, Rosseau, Callander, Trout Creek, and Port Loring. 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Funding Source - New 
# of  

Children 

# of 

Families 

CWELCC 1 1 

Extended Day Fee Subsidy 1 1 

Fee Subsidy 6 5 

Full Fee 1 1 

Ontario Works 1 1 

Total 9 8 

Funding Sources for District Wide Childcare Spaces  

August 2023 

Active 
# of  

Children 

# of 

Families 

CWELCC* 108 105 

CWELCC Full Fee 178 177 

Extended Day Fee Subsidy 11 11 

Fee Subsidy 101 78 

Full Fee 12 10 

Ontario Works 14 12 

Total 424 393 

* CWELCC – Canada-Wide Early Learning Child Care; 

eligible for children 0 - 6 



8 

 

Funding Source - Exits 
# of  

Children 

# of 

Families 

CWELCC 5 5 

Extended Day Fee Subsidy 2 2 

Fee Subsidy 31 22 

Total 38 29 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Quality Assurance Update 

As the Government of Canada identified child care as a national priority to enhance early learning and child-
hood development, support workforce participation and contribute to economic recovery, funding under the 
Canada-Wide Early Learning and Child Care Agreement (CWELCC) is being used to build upon and leverage 
the success of Ontario’s existing early learning and child care system. The Child Care Service Management 
team is thoughtfully creating strategies to increase quality, accessibility, affordability, and inclusivity in the 
early learning and child care sector. Listed below are some identified priorities and achievements:   

• Revenue replacement funding is being allocated to licensed child care operators in the District of Parry 
Sound; striving to achieve an average base fee of $10 a day by 2025-26 for licensed child care spaces 
accommodating children ages 0-6;   

• Priority areas have been determined within our Directed Growth Plan to support expansion of licensed 
child care for community and school based spaces;  

• Start-up grant processes and applications are being created to support expansion;  
• Establish an updated early years network to better understand pressures, overcome challenges, prioritiz-

ing community needs while creating specific action plans.  

Child Care Service Management Update 

Throughout the months of July through to September, 12 Recreational and Skill building programs were visit-
ed. During those visits a Quest 2 assessment was completed on each program by the Quality Assurance Su-
pervisor. The Quest 2 quality assurance assessment tool must be conducted by a High 5 trained trainer and is 
designed to measure program effectiveness and performance. It provides an evaluation and feedback to pro-
grams and administrators to assist in maintaining the highest quality programming at both the individual and 
organizational level. Upon completion of each assessment a copy of the assessment along with any recom-
mendations was sent to each program. All programs supported by the DSSAB successfully passed their evalu-
ation and did not require any follow-up.  

One of the best ways to contribute to the quality of programming is to invest in 
our educators. Therefore, additional professional development training opportu-
nities through the Early Childhood Community Development Centre (ECCDC) 
have been offered to educators for the fall of 2023 through the continued sup-
port of the workforce funding. The training offered will assist in providing educa-
tors with continued early learning seminars that support the importance of fami-
lies in childcare, along with sessions that support high quality and engaging 
learning environments. 

 



9 

 
Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Income Support & Stability Update 

Beginning with the November meeting, the Director of Income Support and Stability will be co-chairing the 
Health & Social Services Network (HSSN) along with the Chief Nursing Officer at the WPSHC. The HSSN is 
a collaborative group of Health Care, Mental Health and Social Service Agencies in West Parry Sound that 
meets monthly and provides a platform to discuss issues that impact the community that intersect the Health 
Care and Social Services lenses and strategizes ways to address these problems in an integrated way. This 
group has also been supporting the WPSHC’s Ontario Health Team application. This is a very exciting evolu-
tion in our partnership with the Health Centre. 

The Director of Income Support and Stability also attended a follow-up Geriatric Pathway session hosted by 
Ontario Health at the Best Western in Parry Sound. 

This past summer saw the beginning of weekly meetings between Ontario Works, Housing Stability and Es-
prit, with the goal of enhancing the support for visitors to the shelter and supporting a safe and successful 
transition. Income Support and Stability Team members continue to meet clients where they are at in offering 
supports. Recently we have partnered with Esprit Place and one staff member is based out of the shelter each 
morning. We use creative methods in connecting with clients, sometimes meeting at a local park, business or 
in their home. This contributes to the success of supporting a client with life stabilization. 

In September, several staff from Ontario Works and Housing Stability attended a 2-day ASIST Training at 
Employment North in South River. Staff continued to enhance their knowledge by attending training on the 
BNL Prioritization, Matching and Referrals, and they continue to complete training provided by OAITH. 

Additional funds have been used to send the Inclusion Support staff to Reaching IN…. Reaching OUT (RIRO) 
training. This 12-hour evidence-based program, is a resiliency training that provides service providers working 
with early learning, child care, community/ mental health and other settings the knowledge and skills they 
need to model and teach resilience approaches to children 0-8 years of age. The skills learned in this training 
will help enhance self-regulation skills and promote a “resilient” perspective and flexible approach to handling 
stress, serious problems and everyday challenges for children and families. Along with the RIRO training the 
ISS staff have been funded to take a Self-regulation certificate program to assist in teaching new ways for ed-
ucators to understand and respond to challenges in behaviour, temperament and learning. Following the 
training sessions the staff will share their new knowledge with the team of educators working with children in 
the centres.  



10 

 

Ontario Works Intake - Social Assistance Digital Application (SADA) & Local Office 

Ontario Works Applications Received  

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 



11 

 
Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

ODSP Participants in Ontario Works Employment Assistance 

The OW Caseload as of the end of August has crept up to 601 (there are 963 beneficiaries in total). We are 
supporting 31 ODSP participants in our Employment Assistance program. We also have 57 Temporary Care 
Assistance cases. Intake also remains steady. We had 53 Ontario Works Applications and 29 applications for 
Emergency Assistance in August which is trending higher than historical norms. 

Employment Assistance & Performance Outcomes 



12 

 
Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Our Employment Outcomes performance in August remains strong. We ranked #1 and #2 respectively in 
each area among our Northeast counterparts. We also exited 6.7% of the caseload for any reason in August. 
This is also very strong considering the continued reduction in job postings reported by the Labour Market 
Group, which saw a nearly 22% drop in postings in July (-36 total).  

MyBenefits Enrollment 2023 



13 

 
Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

DBD Enrollment 

Overpayment Recovery Rate 



14 

 
Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Ontario Works Update 

The Supervisor of Income Support in Parry Sound met with the new Team Leader at YMCA to talk about our 
work together, initiatives and to organize a schedule where YMCA staff visit our Beechwood office once per 
month and for OW staff to visit the YMCA office once per month to visit and meet with mutual clients. This is 
beginning this month.   

In September the Supervisor of Income Support in South River attended the Almaguin Highlands Community 
Partners meeting, which we hosted at our Toronto Avenue location. These meetings, that take place quarter-
ly, are a valuable platform for information sharing on new programs, initiatives and networking. 

Regarding Employment Services Transformation, as we await the selection of our Service System Manager in 
our District as well as the rest of the Northeast, the Income Support and Stability Management Team attend-
ed an information session hosted by College Boreal in North Bay. The goal of this session was to provide an 
update on where things are with the planned submission as well as gather feedback from stakeholders. 

MCCSS has reinforced its commitment to Centralized Intake. They are working with a select group of munici-
palities to further increase the role and responsibilities of the Centralized Intake team (IBAU). Legislative 
amendments passed by the legislature in June 2021, have identified the Ministry as a Delivery Agent to sup-
port these changes. These changes include the Ministry taking responsibility for formal decision making for 
applications, notification to the client and Internal Reviews for all low and medium risk applications. This will 
continue to be trialed in the 3 municipalities before larger implementation across the province. 

In the past few months, our Ontario Works Case Workers have been focused on improving our outreach 
efforts to help support our most complex clients, while fostering crucial relationships with community part-
ners. These relationships have allowed us to tap into additional resources that we would not have known 
about otherwise, while relying on others with more expertise and ability to provide comprehensive stability 
supports. With our client centered approach, our Case Workers have made significant strides in improving 
the lives of our most vulnerable community members.  

We have had recent success with an Ontario Works client completing our Employment Placement Initiative 
and reaching the 3rd Milestone in our program with Employment North and has since become self-sufficient 
and exited Ontario Works. We have a new client entering the placement program and have just hit Milestone 
#1. 

Ontario Works Case Workers have been accessing all resources and rent supplements available through the 
province, the district and CMHA to continue to support our clients and keep them housed. These have been 
extremely beneficial in assisting clients with the gap between their shelter portion and actual rent costs. Cas 
Workers have been working with clients to make sure they get access to foodbanks and attending local food-
banks with clients that are vulnerable and have food insecurity.  

Our van, utilized in our South River office, has been crucial to supporting our clients with transportation barri-
ers to access community supports, workshops, foodbanks, community kitchens, medical appointments and 
more. This contributes to improving the overall well-being and health outcomes for our community mem-
bers.   



15 

 

Short Term Housing Allowance 

Intense Case Management 

August 2023 

Reason for Issue 
Total 

Rental Arrears $275.00 

Utilities/Firewood $1,384.25 

Food/Household/Misc $12,290.95 

Emergency Housing $1,311.22 

Total $15,261.42 

August 2023 

Income Source 
Total HPP 

Senior 5 $2,119.26 

ODSP 15 $7,660.04 

Ontario Works 8 $3,928.38 

Low Income 2 $1,553.74 

Housing Stability: Household Income Sources and Issuance from HPP: 

 Active YTD 

July 2023 10 37 

Contact/Referrals 

August 2023 East West YTD 

Homeless 2 9 42 

At Risk 7 5 64 

Esprit Outreach Homeless 0 1 6 

Esprit Outreach at Risk 0 0 10 

Esprit in Shelter 4 11 

Program Total 133 

Intense Case Management involves the coordination of appropri-

ate services and the provision of consistent and on-going weekly 

supports, required by the individual to obtain, and sustain housing 

stability. 

Support 

All services performed, provided, or arranged by the Homeless-

ness Stability Program staff to promote, improve, sustain, or re-

store appropriate housing for individuals active with the Home-

lessness Stability Program, periodically within the month, not re-

quiring intense case management.  

August 2023 

Income Source 
East West 

Senior 6 16 

ODSP 10 28 

Ontario Works 4 13 

Low Income 18 33 

Housing Stability Program - Community Relations Workers 

August 2023 

Income Source 
East West 

Senior 13 22 

ODSP 9 14 

Ontario Works 8 15 

Low Income 9 44 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 



16 

 

Ontario Works: Household Income Sources and Issuance from HPP 

August 2023 

Income Source 
Total HPP 

Senior 1 $1,000.00 

ODSP 3 $2,200.00 

Ontario Works 17 $12,571.12 

August 2023 

Reason for Issue 
Total 

Rental Arrears $4,182.00 

Utilities/Firewood $3,259.44 

Food/Household/Misc. $8,329.68 

Total $15,771.12 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

By-Name List Data 

September 2021– August 2023 

Housing Stability Update 

This August, in preparation for beginning our own transitional housing program, we visited our colleagues at 
Nipissing DSSAB, to tour their Northern Pines Transitional Housing program. We are grateful for their hospi-
tality. Processes and policies are under development for the Transitional Unit that is scheduled to open early 
2024. 

By-Name List (BNL) Community of Practice sessions hosted by the Canadian Alliance for Ending Homeless-
ness (CAEH), continue to be hosted monthly and are attended by various team members. Topics include 
Winter Response, Prioritization, Matching & Referrals, Analyzing BNL Data and Continuous Improvement. 
Our Supervisor of Housing Stability continues to work with our CAEH BNL coach to support our BNL work. 

The Director of Income Support and Stability attended the DPSVAW Coordinating Committee meeting on 
September 20, 2023. 

The Housing Stability Team are in the final stages of organizing an ID and Tax clinic for both our local offices 
on a regular basis. Clients without proper ID face numerous challenges and by hosting these clinics our goal is 
to remove any related barriers. 

Caseloads remain steady for Housing Stability, however, the complexity of the client’s needs are raising. We 
are learning to shift, adapt and advocate with and for the client to get adequate support in place.  



17 

 

Social Housing Centralized Waitlist (CWL) 2022 - 2023 Comparison 

Applications and Households Housing from the CWL 

Month 

2022 

New  

App. 

New 

SPP 
Cancelled Housed 

SPP  

Housing 

Month  

2023 

New  

App. 

New 

SPP 
Cancelled Housed 

SPP  

Housing 

Jan 5   1  Jan 5 1 13   

Feb 9 1 2   Feb 5 1 10   

Mar 12  5 2 1 Mar 6  35   

Apr 12 1 1   Apr 11  17 6  

May 11 1  3  May 13 2 9 2  

June 15  3 2  June 9 1 2 1  

July 13 2 10 1  July 5 1 5 1  

Aug 5  17 2 1 Aug 14 1 3 1  

Sept 16  10 1 1 Sept      

Oct 14  12 6  Oct      

Nov 12 1 8 3  Nov      

Dec 1   5  Dec      

Total 125 6 68 26 3 Total 68 7 94 11 0 

SPP = Special Priority Applicant  

Housing Programs 

Social Housing Centralized Waitlist Report 

August 2023 

 
East  

Parry Sound 

West  

Parry Sound 
Total 

Seniors 47 113 160 

Families 126 409 535 

Individuals 507 192 699 

Total 680 714 1,394 

450 Total Waitlist Unduplicated 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 



18 

 
Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Housing Programs Update 

This table shows the current loca-
tion of CWL applicants that live in 
the District of Parry Sound. Blue 
represents West side municipalities 
and green represents East side mu-
nicipalities. This shows that many of 
our waitlist applicants live in the 
Town of Parry Sound. 

Housing Programs was able to start sending in COHB applications (Canada-Ontario Housing Benefit) begin-
ning April 1st of this year. These applications were for the 2023-2024 benefit year. We began submitting appli-
cations immediately and received notification in early July that we had spent all our allocated funds. This was 
the fastest we have used this funding since the program began in 2020. We were able to assist just under 30 
new households throughout the District of Parry Sound. Our team continues to receive calls and emails daily 
from other departments, community partners and clients inquiring about availability of COHB funding, which 
highlights the significant need for affordable housing in our district. Applications for the 2024-2025 year are 
not able to be submitted until April 1st, 2024.   

Housing Programs has also seen an increase in requests for Ontario Renovates Accessibility grants. This pro-
gram allows eligible homeowners to apply for a grant to assist with accessibility related repairs. This allows 
people to safely remain in their homes longer than they may have been able to without the repairs/
renovations. We have been able to assist with a variety of requests including accessible bathtubs/showers, 
ramps, porch lifts, grab bars and widened doorways.  

Housing Programs launched their second landlord survey mid-September. We saw several responses from 
area landlords come in within just a few days. The data we hope to collect from the responses will allow us to 
get a better understanding of the private housing stock within our district, as well as the current rents being 
charged. It also allows us to make connections with landlords for future working relationships.  

We continue to collect waitlist data each month which allows us to gather real-time information on our appli-

cants. The table below reflects the current location that applicants live in the District of Parry Sound. This ta-

ble is slightly different than what was shown in the last report as it breaks down applicants by municipality 

rather than east or west.  In the month of August, we saw 14 new applications, which is an increase from pre-

vious months. We have also seen an increase in special priority applications for priority placement on the 

centralized waitlist. There were several approved applications over this quarter.  



19 

 

Parry Sound District Housing Corporation 

August 2023 

Activity for Tenant and Maintenance Services 

 Current YTD 

Move outs 2 26 

Move in 4 22 

L1/L2 forms 0 5 

N4 - notice of eviction for non payment of 

rent 
0 4 

N5 - notice of eviction disturbing the quiet 

enjoyment of the other occupants 
2 10 

N6 - notice of eviction for illegal acts or 

misrepresenting income for RGI housing 
0 0 

N7 - notice of eviction for willful damage 

to unit 
0 1 

Repayment agreements 6 55 

No Trespass Order 1 1 

Tenant Home Visits 25 136 

Mediation/Negotiation/Referrals 21 88 

Tenant Engagements/Education 2 86 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 



20 

 
Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Tenant Services Update 

Over the summer months, Tenant Services has been working hard to get to ALL LHC/DSSAB tenants with a 
brand new and improved lease document. This involved having a lawyer review, writing out all leases for 
each tenant with custom rent calculation information in each one, and delivering them in person to workshop 
sessions we had planned in order to go through a generic template together as a group, answer any questions, 
and have signing completed on-site. All apartment buildings have been visited for this purpose now, and 
what’s left to do are the family units. The new lease is much easier to follow, referencing updated relevant Le-
gal Acts and removing some of the legal jargon and wordiness. Many tenants expressed appreciation for the 
time spent explaining and having conversations about tenancies. The signed return rate is likely about half, so 
some are preferring to stay on the old, original lease.  

In September, we hosted a fire prevention workshop at our Callander building in partnership with the Calland-
er fire department, and the Fire Chief came to present information to tenants. The tenants in attendance ex-
pressed having really enjoyed it and learned a lot of very valuable information from the event. We hope to 
expand this education to all buildings and as many tenants as possible in the future. 

This fall we have been working hard to get all rental increase notices and letters out to all LHC/DSSAB and 
NOAH tenants before October 1st, in line with the Provincial guideline of a 2.5% increase.  

Tenant Services sends out quarterly newsletters to tenants in order to share pertinent information or remind-
ers, as well as new changes to contact people, or events that have taken place, or will. We also share recipes 
and word searches or colouring competitions – first person from each building to get them into the drop box 
with the most answers gets a gift card. This winter we plan to do a puzzle contest among the buildings, as 
many tenants enjoy using the common room to complete puzzles together.  

Here are some snippets from the fall edition: 

  

Living in a multiple unit dwelling may be 
challenging at times. Please be mindful of 
your actions so that they don’t interfere 

with the reasonable enjoyment of others.  

Tenants are responsible to work out their 

differences and if not resolved, a complaint 

form needs to be filled out in order for the 

complaint to be addressed. 

We are asking all tenants who are permit-

ted to smoke in their units, not to smoke 

during inspections or staff presence, unless 

you go outside. We appreciate your  

co-operation.  

Please Review the Following Steps for Tenant Issues 
(1)  Collect as much information as you can about the prob-

lem. Date & Time. 
(2)  You are expected to be involved in the mediation and 

work together to come to a conclusion before contacting 
Tenant Services. 

(3)  If the problem persists complete the purple complaint 
form found in your building common room or laundry 
room and leave in the drop box.  

(4)  If it is an emergency call Housing Office as soon as possi-
ble. If you ever feel your life is in danger call the police. 

(5)  You may not be aware/informed of the actions we are 
taking to resolve the matter. 



21 

 

Pest Control  
3 buildings are currently being inspected monthly for bedbugs; 28 units have 

been treated 

Vacant Units 13 
one-bedroom (8); multiple bedroom (5) 

(not inclusive of The Meadow View) 

Vacant Units -  

The Meadow View 
6 one-bedroom market units available 

After Hours Calls 8 

Smoke detector beeping, sink overflow causing flooding, OPP requested for 

video footage 

4 staff participate in the on-call phone tree system 

Work Orders 150 Created for maintenance work, and related materials for the month of August 

Fire Inspections  Will provide in next month’s report 

Property Maintenance  

August 2023 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Capital Projects  

August 2023 

• The roof at 16 Toronto Ave. has been replaced 
• The contract for the roof replacement at 66 Waubeek has been signed 
• Consultant recommendations and architectural drawings for the 5-story building window replacement 

has been received, and currently reviewing for the 2024 budget 
• The Queen St. and Broadway duplexes have undergone roof replacements, and the interior rough fram-

ing has been completed; the electrical and mechanical work is currently underway 
• The kick-off meeting between engineers, architects, and consultants took place in September for a rede-

sign of a tenant parking area for a west side building 
• HVAC systems at 66 Waubeek St. have been replaced 
• Dangerous trees have been removed from the Waubeek and Church Street properties 
• Furnaces at some west side family unit properties have been replaced 
• Extensive repairs within a unit after fire damage has finally been completed, and a new tenant has 

moved in 

Annual Inspections 

In August, we completed annual inspections for five units, and all buildings on the east side of the district had 
their annual fire inspections completed and passed. The purpose of these annual inspections is to document 
maintenance issues, update smoke detectors approaching expiry, change out batteries, and make sure fire 
extinguishers are in working order. 



22 

 

Child Witness Program 
August 

2023 
YTD 

Number of children/women served this month 22 104 

Number of NEW clients (mothers and children) 

registered in the program 
11 31 

Number of public ed/groups offered 1 6 

Esprit Place Family Resource Centre 

August 2023 

Emergency Shelter Services 
August 

2023 
YTD 

Number of women who stayed in shelter 

this month 
19 77 

Number of children who stayed in the 

shelter this month 
7 29 

Number of hours of direct service to 

women (shelter and counselling) 
231 1,147 

Number of days at capacity 0 73 

Number of days over capacity 5 36 

Overall capacity % 80% 77% 

Resident bed nights (women & children) 248 1,610 

Phone interactions (crisis/support) 44 195 

Transitional Support 
August 

2023 
YTD 

Number of women served this month 16 65 

Number of NEW women registered in the program 8 13 

Number of public ed/groups offered 0 3 

Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 



23 

 
Tammy MacKenzie, CAO 

Esprit Place Family Resource Centre Update 

Women’s Services was thrilled to welcome our new Esprit Place Supervisor in August.  She brings a wealth of 

knowledge and experience to our team.  Her experience in OW and HSP will be highly valuable as we contin-

ue to create a comprehensive service delivery model for clients accessing Esprit services.   

Esprit Place continues to be very busy supporting women and children fleeing violence, as well as women 

experiencing homelessness from across the District of Parry Sound.  We have had several days at or over ca-

pacity during the summer months and only anticipate that this need will grow as the weather changes.  Our 

focus continues to be “housing first” and as such, we are working to strengthen partnerships with our DSSAB 

programs, as well as with other community partners to ensure access to safe affordable housing for our cli-

ents.   

For the last several months CMHA has supported an Addictions Counsellor to be present at the shelter a half 

day a week.  This partnership has increased access to timely addiction and mental health support for our cli-

ents and has strengthened the relationship with this important community partner. The Director of Women’s 

Services also had the pleasure of meeting with the Restorative Relationships Manager from the Parry Sound 

Friendship Centre.  They had a productive discussion about potential areas of collaboration, and agreed to 

work together to ensure that Esprit Place services are culturally safe for Indigenous women and children.  We 

look forward to welcoming the Friendship Centre into Esprit Place to provide input and suggestions and to 

deliver cultural programming.  

The District of Parry Sound Violence Against Women Coordinating Committee has begun rebuilding its 

membership and is now meeting regularly. The Director of Women’s Services will be co-chairing this commit-

tee with the Restorative Relationships Manager from the PSFC.  We have drafted a workplan for the 23/24 

fiscal year that focuses on strengthening membership and delivering violence prevention and healthy relation-

ship programming to the community.   



 

 
 

 

  
 
 
 
To: Council 
From:   Treasurer/Director of Corporate Services 
Re:  Pay Day Policy 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That the memo from Treasurer/Director of Corporate Services B. Robinson be received; and that Section 5.11- Pay Days 
of the Human Resources Policy Manual be amended effective January 1, 2024 as per the wording provided.  
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
 
In the existing Human Resources Policy Manual, pay days are currently scheduled bi-weekly for Tuesdays. This requires 
that staff perform payroll procedures on Monday, which occasionally requires them to work on a statutory holiday. In 
addition, the pay periods as currently structured vary between departments.  
 
To avoid this conflict, and create uniformity in the pay periods across departments, the following revised wording is 
recommended for Section 5.11- Pay Days in our Human Resources Policy Manual: 
 
 

A work week runs for 7 consecutive days, commencing Saturday at 12:01 a.m. and ending Friday at 
11:59 p.m. Employees shall be paid bi-weekly on Wednesdays, for the preceding two work weeks 
ending on the Friday immediately preceding the pay day. 
 
Each employee’s pay will be deposited directly into a bank account of choice. Employees will receive 
an itemized statement of earnings, overtime, and any other supplementary pay and deductions. 

 
 
This will need to be effective on January 1, 2024, to provide staff with sufficient notice of the change, and forms part of 
the comprehensive HR Manual update which will be brought forth for Council consideration at a later meeting.  
 
 
 

250 Clark Street     
 P.O. Box 250   Tel: (705) 724-2813  info@powassan.net 
Powassan, Ontario P0H 1Z0  Fax: (705) 724-5533 www.powassan.net 
 

http://www.powassan.net/


 
 
To:   Council 
From:   Public Works Foreman, T. Tennant  
Re:  Traffic on Sweezy Street 
 
 
Recommendation: That the Memo from Public Works Foreman T. Tennant be received and 
further that Council direct staff to notify residents on Sweezy Street, as well as put an 
additional notice on the Municipal Website and Social Media, to forward speed complaints to 
the OPP via the non-emergency line *677.  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Analysis: Regarding the speeding reports on Sweezy St in Trout Creek, the Ontario traffic 
manual states;  

 
Ontario Traffic Manual • December 2021  

STOP signs are not to be used as speed control devices. Their usage should be limited to the 
control of right-of-way conflicts.   
 
Therefore, a stop sign is not recommended on this street.   
 
There is such thing as traffic calming, however there are some issues to recognize such as the 
ones listed below from the Transportation Association of Canada (TAC).   
 
Purpose of Traffic Calming: The purpose of traffic calming is to restore streets to their desired 
function. This function is to provide both mobility and access, but in differing combinations, 
depending on the specific location, role, and classification of the street. On local and collector 
streets, traffic calming is intended to reduce vehicular speeds, discourage shortcutting, 
minimize conflicts between street users, and improve the neighbourhood environment. Traffic 
calming for urban and rural arterial roads requires a different approach than for urban local and 
collector streets. The primary purpose of traffic calming on these roads is to reduce excessive 
vehicle speeds, alleviate conflicts between road users, and eliminate inappropriate driver 
behaviour.   
 
Issues Affecting Traffic Calming: Practitioners should recognize that there are other issues that 
could affect the feasibility or effectiveness of a traffic calming plan. A broad range of elements, 
including relevant legislation and regulations, liability, accessibility, enforcement, emergency 
services, maintenance and operations, modes of transportation, and compatibility with 
municipal land use and transportation plans can have a direct impact on applicability or 
effectiveness.  
 
Through investigation, there is not a suitable traffic calming measure that would be beneficial 
on Sweezy St, largely due to road maintenance and road surface material. One of the issues 
that would be more than likely to occur with a traffic calming measure is that traffic would start 
avoiding this street, thus adding additional traffic to nearby streets. I suggest that all speed 
complaints be forwarded to the police services board as well as the nonemergency police 
number.   
 





















To: Council 
From: Public Works Foreman, T. Tennant 
Re: Main Street storm water ditch 

Recommendation: That the Memo from Public Works Foreman T. Tennant be received for 
information purposes.  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Analysis: After doing a site visit to 705 Main St I have determined that 2 concrete manholes 
would be required to divert water flow as well as approximately 28 m of 600 mm HDPE pipe. 
The approximate cost for these materials would be $18,871. This price does not include the 
excavation, base material, and appropriate cover material.   



To: Council 
From: Clerk, A. Quinn 
Re: Police Background Check Policy 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Memo from Clerk, A. Quinn, regarding the Police Background Check Policy be 
received and further that Council adopts the policy as presented.  

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ANALYSIS: 

Employees of the Municipality are in contact with the public on a regular basis. While not all 
municipal roles include interacting with children and vulnerable individuals, they do all include 
interacting with the public. Most employees will have to enter facilities where the public gathers 
such asarenas or 250 Clark, as well as helping with outdoor municipal events. This Policy was 
created to ensure, by any reasonable means, that Municipal employees or volunteers do not 
pose any risk to the general public, children, or any vulnerable individuals.  



Policy & Procedure Manual 

POLICY STATEMENT 

As a provider of public services, the Municipality of Powassan (“Municipality”) must exercise 
due diligence by ensuring, to the extent reasonably possible, that employees and volunteers who 
provide such services do not pose a risk to vulnerable individuals, other employees, or to the best 
interests of the Municipality of Powassan. 

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to create a consistent approach to hiring within the Municipality and 
to ensure the safety of the public and employees by ensuring that all positions require a Police 
Background Check and that sensitive information provided by applicants and employees is 
handled appropriately, protecting the privacy rights of individuals. 

2. SCOPE

This Policy applies to all current and prospective Municipal employees, including but not limited 
to regular, temporary, contract employees, volunteers, students, and interns. A Police Background 
Check is a bona fide occupational requirement for all municipal positions.  

The Policy may also apply to employees assigned or promoted into a position where the 
employee did not submit such a check at the time of employment.  

This Policy is intended to supplement any other requirements imposed by applicable legislation 
or standards of professional practice.  

3. DEFINITIONS

3.1 Bona Fide Occupational Requirement: A requirement or qualification of a position, 
necessitated by the safe, efficient, and reliable performance of the essential duties of the job 
or the functioning of the organization. 

3.2 Designated Position: A position determined by the Municipality, through a legislative 
       requirement or as a result of the nature of the position, as requiring a Police Background 
       Check. 

POLICY:  Police Background Check 
Policy 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: DATE PASSED: 

EFFECTIVE DATE: REVIEW DATE: AUTHORITY: 



Policy & Procedure Manual 
3.3  Human Resource Representative: An 

employee or contractor assigned by Council to perform Human Resource duties for the 
Municipality of Powassan. 

3.4  Record Suspension: Formerly known as a pardon, a decision by the National Parole Board 
upon application by an individual to have their record sealed. Once a Record Suspension is 
granted, the record, including fingerprints, photographs, and RCMP and court records are 
then sealed, and never opened unless the individual is subsequently charged with a criminal 
offence or unless, for sexual offences, a record is disclosed during a vulnerable sector 
screening check. 

3.5 Police Background Check: A process where the police conduct a check of an individual’s 
record through the Canadian Police Information Centre (CPIC). The police provide a report 
of their findings to the individual, which may include information about criminal 
convictions, federal or provincial charges discharged or pending, and probation or 
prohibition orders.  

A positive finding may indicate that the individual has a record(s) or incident on file. A clear 
finding indicates that the individual does not have a record(s).  

There are three types of Police Background Checks available: 
Criminal Records Check: A record search conducted by a police authority, which identifies if 
an individual has a criminal conviction for which a Record Suspension has not been granted, 
including findings of Guilt under the Youth Criminal Justice Act within the applicable 
disclosure period. This check does not provide any further information such as outstanding 
charges, warrants, or instances of local police contact.  

Criminal Record and Judicial Matters Check (formerly called a Police Information Check - 
PIC): A comprehensive review of the criminal file of an applicant conducted by a police 
authority, which compiles offence information, including convictions, outstanding warrants, 
charges and judicial orders available from a local police agency’s records management 
system and other systems/records where authorized.  

Vulnerable Sector Check (VSC): In addition to the information provided in the Criminal 
Records and Judicial Matters Check, the Vulnerable Sector Check identifies whether an 
individual has a sexual offence recorded in their name in Canada for which a Record 
Suspension has been granted or issued. In this type of check, non-conviction information is 
released only in exceptional cases. The Vulnerable Sector Check will only be issued where a 
police service is satisfied that the position meets the following criteria: (a) the position is one 
of trust or authority towards that child or vulnerable person; and (b) the applicant has 
consented in writing to the verification. 

3.6 Vulnerable Persons: Persons who, because of their age, disability, or other circumstances, 
whether temporary or permanent, are (a) in a position of dependence on others; or (b) are 
otherwise at a greater risk than the general population of being harmed by persons in a 
position of authority or trust relative to them. 

4. POLICY



Policy & Procedure Manual 
4.1 Information from Police Background Checks will be collected, used, and disclosed in 

 compliance with the Ontario Human Rights Code, the Municipal Freedom of Information  
 and Protection of Privacy Act, the Criminal Records Act, the Police Record Checks Reform 
 Act, and all other applicable legislation. 

4.2 The Municipality abides by all Provincial statutes that outline specific legislative authority 
for Police Background Checks for specific positions and service delivery areas, including, 
but not limited to: Day Nurseries Act, R.S.O. 1990 c.D2, as amended Ambulance Act, 
R.S.O. 1990, CHAPTER A.19 Long-Term Care Homes Act, 2007 S.O. 2007, CHAPTER 8. 

5. BONA FIDE OCCUPATIONAL REQUIREMENT

5.1 Police Background Checks will be requested for all municipal positions as a bona fide 
occupational requirement. 

5.2 Interaction with the public is ongoing for all municipal employees. All municipal positions 
meet the following criteria, whether on a daily or temporary basis: 

(a) a clear Police Background Check is mandated by legislation or by policy of a
Provincial or Federal authority; or
(b) the individual performing the position will be in a position of trust or authority over
vulnerable persons; or
(c) the position requires the incumbent to handle significant amounts of money in a
relatively unsupervised environment; or
(d) the position is one that involves security or safety of assets or persons; or
(e) a clear Police Background Check is required to fulfill some other requirement of the
position.

6. EMPLOYMENT, ASSIGNMENT, OR PROMOTION

6.1 Each department is responsible for pre-determining the positions, based on a bona fide 
 occupational requirement, which of the following will be required: 

(a) Criminal Record Check;
(b) Criminal Record and Judicial Matters Check; or
(c) Vulnerable Sector Check.

6.2 Human Resources, in consultation with departments, must approve the designation of 
 positions that require a Vulnerable Sector Check, unless such designation is legislatively 
 mandated.  

6.3 Human Resources will maintain an up-to-date list of approved Designated Positions. 

6.4 Where a Police Background Check is required, the job description and any advertisement 
 regarding the position must clearly indicate that: “In accordance with the Municipality of 
 Powassan’s Policy on Police Background Checks, the position requires that the individual 



Policy & Procedure Manual 
 provide, at their own cost, a clear 
[Criminal Record Check, Criminal Record and Judicial 

 Matters Check or Vulnerable Sector Check] as a condition of employment.” 

6.5 Police Background Checks must be conducted by the Police Services in the jurisdiction 
where the applicant or employee resides. Individuals who reside in smaller jurisdictions that 
do not have their own Police Services will be required to obtain a Police Background Check 
from the Ontario Provincial Police (OPP) or designated agency.  

6.6 Generally, a Police Background Check will only be requested as a part of a conditional offer 
of employment. No individual will be placed in employment or volunteer service until a 
Police Background Check has been received and considered. There may be specific 
circumstances in which the submission of a clear Police Background Check is required 
earlier in the application process.  

Should there be an undue delay with obtaining a Criminal Record Check, approval to 
commence work prior to submission must be obtained by Human Resources or designate. 
Under no circumstance will a candidate requiring a Vulnerable Sector Check be able to 
commence work prior to the submission of a satisfactory check.   

6.7 The Municipality has the ability to require new Police Record Checks after any break in 
employment/volunteer work greater than six (6) months and subsequent reinstatement with 
the Municipality. The candidate is responsible for all associated fees. 

6.8 There may be instances where Police Services will deny a request for a Vulnerable Sector 
Check if they feel that the position identified does not meet the criteria necessary for the 
screening. In this situation, the Municipality has authority to proceed with a hire decision 
based on the level of search provided and deemed sufficient by Police Services.  

6.9 If a person under the age of 18 is placed in a position where they are working with 
vulnerable persons, a Criminal Record and Judicial Matters Check is considered sufficient. 
The Criminal Record and Judicial Matters Check queries all the same information banks as 
the VSC check with the exception of the RCMP's Pardoned database. 

6.10  Individuals applying for employment or volunteer opportunities are responsible for 
applying for, paying the costs of, and submitting the results of all Police Background 
Checks. The Municipality will reimburse successful employment candidates and volunteers 
for the cost of the Police Background Check once the results are submitted with no findings. 
The original version of the Police Background Check provided shall be returned to the 
applicant and a copy kept in the employee’s personnel file.  

6.11 Current employees who are being assigned or promoted into a new position will be required 
to submit a background check prior to being assigned or promoted. 



Policy & Procedure Manual 
6.12 Individuals who fail to provide a 

Police Background Check, having been asked to do so,   will not be considered for 
employment or volunteer opportunities.  

6.13 Human Resources is responsible for receiving, considering, and safeguarding the results of 
any submitted Police Background Checks. In the exceptional circumstance where the 
operating department is mandated to maintain the results, the department will ensure that the 
results are appropriately and securely filed and that access to the information is on a strict 
need-to-know basis.  

6.14 In the event, that a Police Background Check received has a positive finding, Human 
Resources will determine if the Police Background Check is satisfactory to the Municipality. 
A check that is positive must be approved by Human Resources prior to a department 
proceeding with an employment offer, assignment, transfer, promotion, etc.  

6.15 As a Police Background Check contains personal information, it must not be kept for longer 
than necessary or for purposes other than it was originally intended for. 

7. IN THE COURSE OF EMPLOYMENT

7.1 The frequency of the Police Background Check renewal must be identified in the job 
description and any advertising for the position at the time of initial hire. 

7.2 Individuals occupying a position where a renewed Police Background Check is legislatively 
required are responsible for consenting to the renewal check as a condition of employment 
or continued employment. 

7.3 Human Resources is responsible for receiving, considering, and safeguarding the results of 
any renewed Police Background Checks. In the exceptional circumstances where the 
operating department is mandated to maintain the results, the department will ensure that the 
results are appropriately and securely filed and that access to the information is on a strict 
need-to-know basis.  

7.4 If a renewal check is returned with a positive finding, Human Resources may consult with 
the department to determine the impact, if any, on the individual’s employment or volunteer 
service.  

7.5 As a Police Background Check contains personal information, renewal checks must not be 
kept for longer than necessary or for purposes other than it was originally intended for. 

7.6  Employees who were initially hired with a requirement for a Police Background Check shall 
immediately notify their manager or division head of any change that would negatively 
affect their record. Failure to do so shall be considered grounds for disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination.  



Policy & Procedure Manual 
7.6.1   For positions requiring a Criminal Records Check, changes to be reported would 

include convictions. 

7.6.2  For positions requiring a Criminal Record and Judicial Matters Check or a 
Vulnerable Sector check, changes that must be reported include convictions, 
outstanding warrants, charges, and judicial orders. 

7.7 A department must consult with Human Resources on any changes to an employee’s Police 
Background Check. 

7.8 Where there is a reasonable basis to believe that there may be changes to an employee’s 
police record, the Municipality reserves the right to request an updated Police Background 
Check at any time during employment. 

8. EXCEPTIONS

8.1 Only Human Resources is authorized to make exceptions to this Policy. Where a Police 
Background Check comes back positive, Human Resources or designate will consider the 
following factors in making an exception to this policy:  

(a) the nature of the position;
(b) the inherent safety and security risks in performing the position;
(c) the justification for the bona fide occupational requirement;
(d) the underlying legislative scheme, if applicable;
(e) the nature of the conviction;
(f) the number of convictions;
(g) the time elapsed since the conviction (if compelling) and the frequency of convictions
(if applicable);
(h) whether the individual should and can be accommodated in the position to the point
of undue hardship in accordance with the Municipality’s Employment Accommodation
Policy;
(i) whether the individual is in the process of securing a Record Suspension;
(k) whether it is appropriate to extend a conditional offer pending receipt of the Record
Suspension; and
(l) any other factors deemed appropriate in the circumstances

Human Resources or their designate will consider a Police Background Check as 
complete and is not required to make any inquiries as to the accuracy of the information 
on which it was based. 

9. COMPLIANCE

Violations of this Policy may result in appropriate disciplinary measures, up to and including 
termination of employment or offer of employment. 



Policy & Procedure Manual 
10. RESPONSIBILITIES

The Human Resource representative is responsible for this document. 

11. POLICY REVIEW

This policy will be periodically reviewed and updated as required. This policy must be reviewed 
by the stated review date and approved by the responsible department.  



To: 
From: 
Re: 
Date: 

Council 
Clerk, A. Quinn 
Municipal Flag and Proclamation Policy 
October 13, 2023 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the memo from Clerk A. Quinn be received and further that Council adopts the new 
Municipal Flag and Proclamation Policy. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

ANALYSIS: 

The Municipal Flag and Proclamation Policy was first introduced at the August 1, 2023, 
Regular Meeting of Council. It was deferred and staff were directed to revisit the policy. 
The policy has since been revised to reflect Council comments and that the Municipality 
currently only has one flagpole at the Municipal office. Should that change, the policy 
will be revised to reflect that.  



Policy & Procedure Manual 

POLICY:   
Flag and Proclamation Policy 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: DATE PASSED: 

EFFECTIVE DATE: REVIEW DATE: AUTHORITY: 

POLICY STATEMENT 

This Policy shall establish guidelines for flying flags at facilities owned by the Municipality of 
Powassan, and Council endorsement of proclamations to ensure fair and consistent application. 

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Flag and Proclamation Policy is to establish guidelines and procedures for the 
proper display and use of flags within the Municipality of Powassan (“Municipality”), and for 
Council support of Proclamations.  

The following general principles will apply in respect to all aspects of this Policy, and be used 
when interpreting the Policy: 

• The Municipality will use flags to observe the Municipality’s diversity, and honour those
who have contributed to the life of the Municipality; and

• The flying of flags at any municipal facility will not be contrary to the principles of any
other Municipal policy.

• The Municipality will use proclamations to promote public awareness campaigns,
charitable fundraising campaigns, arts, and cultural celebrations of significance to the
Municipality.

• Proclamations will be used to acknowledge special honours for individuals and
organizations within the Municipality, in recognition of a special achievement.

• Council’s endorsement of Community Flags and Proclamations is based on a framework
that ensures all requests are dealt with consistently.

2. SCOPE

This policy applies to all employees, contractors, volunteers, and visitors of the Municipality, as 
well as any flags displayed on municipal premises or at municipal events and any proclamations 
made on behalf of the Municipality. 

3. DEFINITIONS

In this policy, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

3.1 Clerk: shall mean the Municipal Clerk and/or their designate.  



Policy & Procedure Manual 
3.2 Council: shall mean the Council for The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan. 

3.3 Flag Raising: for purposes of this policy, means the raising of a flag, in a location determined 
by Council. 

3.4 Flying a Flag at Half-mast: means the action of flying all flags, forming a single display of 
flags, at a position that is an equal distance from the top and bottom of a flagpole, to mark periods 
of mourning or to commemorate solemn occasions. 

3.5 Municipality: shall mean The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan. 

3.6 Municipal Property: shall mean real property owned by the Municipality of Powassan and 
includes any location where protocols will be used, or flag poles are present. 

3.7 National Flag of Canada: means the flag approved by the Parliament of Canada as a national 
symbol of Canada. 

3.8 Proclamation: shall mean a public or official announcement, particularly one dealing with a 
matter of great importance that may be endorsed by Council and may be recognized on a particular 
day, week or month; and   

3.9 Provincial Flag of Ontario: means the flag approved by the Legislative Assembly of Ontario 
as a provincial symbol of Ontario. 

4. FLAGS

4.1 Flag Display 
Only authorized flags shall be displayed on municipal premises or at Municipal events. Flags 
should be displayed in a respectful manner, with appropriate lighting and positioning, should be 
maintained in good condition and replaced when worn or damaged and should be displayed in 
accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and customs. 

4.2 Authorized Flags 
The authorized flags for display on municipal premises or at municipal events include the National 
Flag of Canada as well as any other flags specifically approved by the Municipality of Powassan 
Council or staff members as authorized by Council.  

4.3 Community Flag Raisings 
The National Flag of Canada will remain on the flagpole at all times. No Community Flag Raising 
requests will be considered.  

4.4 Raising and Lowering of Flags 



Policy & Procedure Manual 
Flags should be raised and lowered 
according to proper flag protocol, as established by applicable laws and customs. Other authorized 
flags should be raised and lowered as appropriate, considering their significance and relevance. 

4.5 Customary Flag Configuration 
The Municipality’s protocol for the usual configuration of the flags at the Municipality of 
Powassan’s facilities will be: 

The National Flag of Canada will be flown on the flagpole. Another flag will not be flown under 
the National Flag of Canada. Other flags will not be flown at these facilities, except in the 
circumstances noted under the heading “Dignitary Visits”. 

When more than one flag is displayed to form a single display, the National Flag of Canada will 
be on the left to an observer facing the display, which is the customary position of honour.  

4.6 Dignitary Visits 
In the event of a visit by a dignitary to the Municipality of Powassan, the Municipality may fly a 
flag representing the visiting dignitary’s country with the approval of the Mayor. 

4.7 Half-Mast Protocol 
The Municipality’s protocol for flying a flag at half-mast will be: 

Periods of mourning - Flags will be flown at half-mast at Municipal facilities to mark periods of 
official mourning upon the death of: 

• The Sovereign;
• A Member of the Royal Family;
• The Governor General of Canada, or a former Governor General;
• The Prime Minister of Canada, or a former Prime Minister;
• The Leader of His Majesty’s Loyal Opposition, Parliament of Canada;
• The Lieutenant Governor of Ontario;
• The Premier of Ontario or a former Premier;
• The Leader of His Majesty’s Loyal Opposition, Legislative Assembly of Ontario;
• A local Member of Parliament, or local Member of the Legislative Assembly of Ontario;
• The Mayor or a former Mayor;
• A Member of Council or former Member of Council;
• A current employee of the Municipality of Powassan;
• An Ontario Provincial Police Officer who dies in the line of duty; and
• A resident of the Municipality, who is a member of the Canadian Armed Forces, killed

while deployed on operations.

Flags will be flown at half-mast, in the case of a national or provincial official, for the duration 
established by the appropriate federal or provincial protocol offices. In the case of other persons,  

flags will be flown at half-mast from the date the notice of death is received until sunset on the 
date of the funeral for that individual. 



Policy & Procedure Manual 
It is recognized that in unique situations 
outside of the Policy, the Mayor and Clerk may request a flag to be flown at half-mast. The Clerk’s 
Office will be responsible for coordinating the lowering of flags at Municipal facilities. 

In all cases where flags are lowered to half-mast at any or all Municipal facilities, a broadcast 
notice will be placed on www.powassan.net/news to explain why the flags have been lowered and 
for how long they will be at half-mast. Information on which facilities will have flags at half-mast 
will be included in the posting. 

Commemoration of Solemn Occasions:  
Flags will be flown at half-mast annually, at all municipal facilities, to commemorate the 
following solemn occasions, on or about the following dates dependant on staff availability: 

• Day of Mourning for Persons Killed or Injured in the Workplace (April 28)
• Firefighters National Memorial Day (second Sunday in September)
• Police and Peace Officer’s National Memorial Day (last Sunday of September)
• National Day for Truth and Reconciliation (September 30)
• Remembrance Day (November 11)
• National Day of Remembrance and Action on Violence Against Women (December 6)

Other Solemn Occasions: 
The commemoration of other periods of official mourning and solemn occasions, in keeping with 
the General Principles of this Policy, may be approved by the Mayor. 

4.8 Dignity of the Flag 
Flags should always be treated with respect and dignity and should not be used for any 
disrespectful or inappropriate purposes, including but not limited to advertising, decorations, 
clothing, or any activity that may be deemed offensive or disrespectful. Flags should not be 
defaced, altered, or modified in any way that may compromise their integrity or symbolism. 

The National Flag of Canada should be displayed only in a manner appropriate for this important 
national symbol; it should not be subjected to dishonour or displayed in a position inferior to 
another flag. The National Flag of Canada always takes priority over all other national flags when 
flown in Canada. The only flags that are given priority over the National Flag of Canada are the 
personal standards of members of the Royal Family and of His Majesty’s eleven representatives 
in Canada.  

The National Flag of Canada should always be flown on its own mast; flag protocol states that it 
is improper to fly two (2) or more flags on the same mast.  

When the National Flag of Canada is raised or lowered, or when it is carried in a parade or review, 
everyone present should face the Flag, remain silent and remove their hats. Those in uniform 
should salute.  

5. PROCLAMATIONS

5.1 Proclamation Criteria    
Proclamations that are of significance to the Municipality may be endorsed by Council for the 
following: 

http://www.powassan.net/news


Policy & Procedure Manual 
• Civic promotions;
• Public awareness campaigns;
• Charitable fundraising campaigns;
• Arts and cultural celebrations;
• Special honours for individuals and organizations for special achievements.

Only proclamations that involve participation by the Municipality or its residents will be 
considered for endorsement. Proclamations will not be endorsed by Council of the Municipality 
for the following:   

• Matters of political controversy;
• Religious organizations or religious events or celebrations;
• Individual conviction;
• Organizations or events with no direct relationship to the Municipality and/or do not

involve participation by the Municipality or its residents;
• Celebrations, campaigns or events contrary to Municipal policies or Bylaws;
• Celebrations, campaigns or events intended for profit-making purposes;
• Matters attempting to influence government policy.

5.2 Proclamation Requests 
All organizations or persons submitting a request for a proclamation must complete a Proclamation 
Request Form attached as Appendix A to this policy. Proclamation Request Forms shall be 
submitted to the attention of the Clerk and must be submitted at least eight (8) weeks prior to the 
day requested for the reading of the Proclamation. The following limitations related to 
proclamation requests are noted for those submitting a request: 

• An organization may only request one proclamation annually;
• An organization does not have exclusive rights to the day, week or month of their

proclamation;
• Proclamations on a similar topic will be issued on a first come, first served basis;
• Multi-year proclamations or proclamations that are to be repeated indefinitely will not be

considered and must be requested on an annual basis. There is no requirement to submit a
Proclamation Request annually for multi-year proclamations that were endorsed by
Council prior to the implementation of this policy.

5.3 Review of Proclamation Requests   
Proclamation requests will be reviewed by the Clerk against the eligibility criteria noted in this 
Policy. In the event that the request does not comply with this policy, the Clerk, in consultation 
with the Mayor, will not include the request on a Council meeting agenda and will advise the 
Mayor and organization/person submitting the request accordingly.    

Proclamation requests that meet all eligibility criteria will be placed on the agenda for the next 
Regular Council Meeting under the New Business section of the agenda.    

5.4 Council Endorsement of Proclamation Requests    
Proclamations shall only be considered at Regular Council Meetings. 

Following consideration of a Proclamation Request by Council, the Clerk or their designate will 
advise the organization/person who submitted the Proclamation Request Form in writing of the 



Policy & Procedure Manual 
outcome of Council’s consideration. 
Proclamations that have been endorsed by Council will be noted on the “News” section of the 
Municipality’s website and on the Municipal Facebook page. Items such as decals, signs, banners, 
brochures, or similar items that accompany a proclamation request will not be displayed at 
Municipal facilities unless, at the sole discretion of the Clerk, it is determined that they provide 
information of significant value to residents of the Municipality. 

6. ENFORCEMENT

All employees, contractors, volunteers, and visitors are expected to comply with this Flag and 
Proclamation Policy. Failure to comply with this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment or contract. 

7. POLICY REVIEW

This Flag and Proclamation Policy shall be reviewed annually by the Clerk’s Office to ensure its 
ongoing effectiveness and compliance with any changes in laws, regulations, or organizational 
requirements. Any proposed changes to this policy shall be submitted to Council for review and 
approval. 

APPENDIX A 

Proclamation Request Form 

Please complete and submit the completed Proclamation Request Form to office@powassan.net 
or by mail/drop-off at PO Box 250 | 250 Clark Street | Powassan ON  P0H 1Z0 

Organization Name: 



Policy & Procedure Manual 

Contact Name 

Address 

Phone Email 

Proclamation Requested: 

Date of  Proclamation: 

Purpose of Proclamation: 
☐ Civic Proclamation ☐ Charitable Fundraising Campaign
☐ Special Honour of Individual or Organization       ☐ Public Awareness Campaign
☐ Arts and Cultural Celebration
☐ Other:

Description of Organization (attached additional documentation if needed): 

Has the same/similar proclamation been requested to the Municipality in the past? 
☐ Yes (provided date of previous request) ☐ No (new request)

As part of the proclamation, will there be any special initiatives or events planned in the 
Municipality? If so, please describe: 



Policy & Procedure Manual 
Do you have a draft wording for the proclamation? 
☐ Yes, attached
☐ No

Signature Date 

The personal information on this form is collected under the authority of the Municipal Act. The 
information is used for the purpose of processing this form. Questions about this collection of 
information can be made to the Clerk at (705) 724-2813. 



THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN 
(Hughes)  

BY-LAW NO. 2023-24 

Being a By-law to amend By-law No. 2003-38, as amended, the Zoning By-
law for the Municipality of Powassan with respect to lands located in Part 
Lot 15, Concession 14, RP 42R-13092, Municipality of Powassan (137 
Main Street, Powassan). 

WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan is empowered 
to pass By-laws to regulate the use of land pursuant to Section 34 of the Planning Act, 
1990; 

AND WHEREAS the owners of the subject lands have filed an application with the 
Municipality of Powassan to amend By-law No. 2003-38, as amended; 

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan deems 
it advisable to amend By-Law 2003-38, as amended;  

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan 
enacts as follows: 

1. Schedule ‘B’ to Zoning By-law No. 2003-38 as amended, is hereby further
amended by re-zoning affected lands described as Par Lot 15, Concession 14, RP
42R-13092, (137 Main Street, Powassan), in the Municipality of Powassan from
Rural (RU) to Rural - Exception Fifteen (RU- 15) as shown hatched on Schedule
‘A-1’ attached hereto and forming part of this By-law.

2. Section 4.4.3 of Zoning By-law No. 2003-38 is hereby further amended by the
addition of the following subsection:

4.4.3.15  Rural Exception Fifteen (RU -15) Zone

Notwithstanding Section 4.4.1 of the of the Rural (RU) Zone, on lands described
legally as Part Lot 15, Concession 14, RP 42R-13092, Municipality of Powassan
(137 Main Street, Powassan), a four-plex residential dwelling shall be permitted.

3. This By-law shall come into effect upon the date of passage hereof, subject to the
provisions of Section 34 (30) and (31) of the Planning Act, 1990.

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME on the 3rd of October, 2023 

READ A THIRD TIME and finally passed this 17th of October, 2023 

____________________________ ______________________________ 
Mayor  Clerk 



Schedule ‘A-1’ 
 

 

Lands to be rezoned from 
RU (Rural) to 

RU-15 (Rural - Exception Fifteen) 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 
 
 

 
TO THE OFFICIAL PLAN OF THE  
MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

‘HUGHES’ 
 

      
 
 
 
 
 

Date: OCTOBER 3, 2023 
 



1 
 

BY-LAW NO. 2023-25 

A BY-LAW OF THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF 
POWASSAN TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL PLAN OF MUNICIPALITY 

OF POWASSAN 

The Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 
16, 17 and 21 of the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990 hereby enacts as follows:  

1. That Amendment No. 2 to the Official Plan of the Municipality of Powassan, consisting of the attached 
Part “B”, is hereby approved. 

2. That this By-law shall take effect on the date of passage by Council and shall come into force in 
accordance with Sections 16, 17, and 21 of the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990. 

 

READ a First and Second Time this 3rd day of October, 2023.  

 
____________________________________ 

Peter McIsaac, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 
Allison Quinn, Clerk 

 

READ a Third and Final Time and Adopted by Council this 17th day of October, 2023. 

 
 

____________________________________ 
Peter McIsaac, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 
Allison Quinn, Clerk 

  

 



2 
 

THE CONSTITUTIONAL STATEMENT 
 
PART A – THE PREAMBLE, does not constitute part of this Amendment 
 
PART B – THE AMENDMENT, consisting of the following text constitutes Amendment No. 2 to the Official Plan 
of the Municipality of Powassan. 
 
PART C – APPENDIX “A”, does not constitute part of this amendment. 
 



3 
 

 
PART A – THE PREAMBLE 
 
PART A to this Official Plan Amendment is provided for information purposes only and does not constitute 
part of this Amendment. 
 
 
1. Lands Affected by this Amendment 
  
 The lands affected by this amendment include all lands within the jurisdictional limits of the 

Municipality of Powassan; lands located in Part Lot 15, Concession 14, RP 42R-13092, Municipality 
of Powassan (137 Main Street, Powassan).  

 
 
2. Purpose 
                
          The purpose of this amendment is for Council to amend the “Rural Area” Designation of the 

Municipality of Powassan Official Plan to permit the development of a four-plex (four attached 
residential dwelling units under one roof with separate entrances) at lands located in Part Lot 15, 
Concession 14, RP 42R13092, (137 Main Street, Powassan).  

 
 
 
3. Background and Basis 
 

3.1 The Official Plan for the Municipality of Powassan, which was adopted by Council of the 
Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan on October 21, 2003; By-Law 2003-37, with 
modifications, by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs on October 16, 2005. 
 

3.2 An application for an Official Plan Amendment for the subject land was received on 
August 31, 2023, by the Municipality of Powassan to permit the development of a four-
plex on the subject property. 
 

3.3 The Official Plan designates the subject lands as “Rural” on Schedule A and the “Rural 
Area” policies only permit development of low-density residential uses. A four-plex is not 
a low-density residential use.  

 
3.4 The subject lands are located within close proximity to the Powassan Urban Service Area.  
 
3.5 A review of the existing policies in the Municipality of Powassan Official Plan indicates 

that amendments are required to permit a four-plex residential use.  
 
3.6 The proposed amendments are consistent with the applicable policies and direction of 

the Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 and the Growth Plan for Northern Ontario, 2011. 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
PART B - THE AMENDMENT 
 
1. Introductory Statement 
 

All of this part of the document entitled PART B – THE AMENDMENT, consisting of the following 
text constitutes Amendment No. 2 to the Official Plan of the Municipality of Powassan. 

 
 
2. Details of the Amendment 

 
2.1 Section 5.7 Rural Area is hereby amended by the addition of the following section: 

 
5.7.5 Site Specific Polices 
 
5.7.5.1 Notwithstanding any policy of this plan to the contrary a four-plex (four attached 

dwelling units under one roof with separate entrances) shall be permitted on the 
lands located at Part Lot 15, Concession 14, RP 42R-13092, Municipality of 
Powassan (137 Main Street, Powassan), shown hatched on Schedule A.  

 
3. Implementation 
 

The provisions of this Amendment shall be implemented by a Zoning By-law 
amendment to be enacted by the Municipality of Powassan and attached in 
Appendix A. 

 
 
4. Interpretation 

 
The interpretation of the Official Plan for the Municipality of Powassan, as amended, shall govern 
the interpretation of this Amendment. 

 
  



5 
 

SCHEDULE A  
of Official Plan Amendment no. 2 

 
 

 
 
 

Lands Subject to  
Official Plan Amendment no. 2 



6 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 
THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN 

(Hughes)  
BY-LAW NO. 2023-24 

 
Being a By-law to amend By-law No. 2003-38, as amended, the Zoning By-law for 
the Municipality of Powassan with respect to lands located in Part Lot 15, 
Concession 14, RP 42R-13092, Municipality of Powassan (137 Main Street, 
Powassan). 

 
WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan is empowered to pass By-laws 
to regulate the use of land pursuant to Section 34 of the Planning Act, 1990; 
 
AND WHEREAS the owners of the subject lands have filed an application with the Municipality of 
Powassan to amend By-law No. 2003-38, as amended; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan deems it advisable to 
amend By-Law 2003-38, as amended;  
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan enacts as follows: 
 
1. Schedule ‘B’ to Zoning By-law No. 2003-38 as amended, is hereby further amended by re-zoning 

affected lands described as Par Lot 15, Concession 14, RP 42R-13092, (137 Main Street, 
Powassan), in the Municipality of Powassan from Rural (RU) to Rural - Exception Fifteen (RU- 
15) as shown hatched on Schedule ‘A-1’ attached hereto and forming part of this By-law. 
 

2. Section 4.4.3 of Zoning By-law No. 2003-38 is hereby further amended by the addition of the 
following subsection: 
 
4.4.3.15  Rural Exception Fifteen (RU -15) Zone 
 
Notwithstanding Section 4.4.1 of the of the Rural (RU) Zone, on lands described legally as Part 
Lot 15, Concession 14, RP 42R-13092, Municipality of Powassan (137 Main Street, Powassan), a 
four-plex residential dwelling shall be permitted. 
 

3. This By-law shall come into effect upon the date of passage hereof, subject to the provisions of 
Section 34 (30) and (31) of the Planning Act, 1990.  
 

 
READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME on the 3rd of October, 2023 
 
READ A THIRD TIME and finally passed this 17th of October, 2023 
 
____________________________   ______________________________ 
Mayor      Clerk 

 



7 
 

 
 

Schedule ‘A-1’ 
 

 
 

Lands to be rezoned from 
RU (Rural) to 

RU-15 (Rural - Exception Fifteen) 



 
 
 
To:   Council 
From:   Clerk, A. Quinn 
Re:  Pool Inspection Report 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
That the Memo from Clerk A. Quinn regarding the Municipal Pool Inspection Report be 
received for information purposes.  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
ANALYSIS:  
 
At the Regular Council Meeting of September 5, 2023, Council passed Resolution 2023-70 that 
included the following: 
 

FURTHER that Council direct staff to provide an action plan for a full review including 
necessary repairs, upgrades and costs analysis based on reports expected from the 
Public Health Inspector and pool contractor.  

 
The accompanying Pool Inspection Report (Powassan Lions’ Community Class A Pool – non-
compliance letter) was received on Thursday, October 12, 2023. Staff were waiting on this and 
some other details to finalize their report. Now that this has been received, staff will prepare their 
report to present to Council at the November 7 Regular Meeting of Council.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 
September 28, 2023 via email: aquinn@powassan.net 
 
Allison Quinn 
Acting Clerk 
Municipality of Powassan 
250 Clarke Street 
Powassan ON P0H 1Z0  
 
Dear Allison: 
 
RE: Location:  Powassan Lion’s Community Pool 

Public Health Inspector: Melissa Watson, CPHI(C) 
Date of site visit: September 14, 2023 

 
The following is a list of items that were observed to be in non-compliance throughout the 2023 operating season for 
the Powassan Lion’s Community Pool. A site visit was conducted to determine the items that must be addressed prior 
to 2024 operation as well as suggestions that will help with the longevity of the Powassan Lion’s Community Pool. The 
O.Reg 565 Public Pools outlines the requirements for daily operation of public pools.  
 
Requirements 

Black disc 
 

(6)(m) Every owner and every operator shall ensure that a 
black disc 150 millimeters in diameter on a white background 
is affixed to the bottom of the pool at its deepest point 

Pool floor and deck (around the pool) (6) (b) Every owner and every operator shall ensure that, all 
surfaces of the pool or spa deck and walls are maintained in a 
sanitary condition and free from potential hazards 

Lifeguard certification 6) Every lifeguard shall, 

b) be the holder of a current lifeguard certificate that is dated 
not more than two years prior to the date on which he or she 
is acting as a lifeguard; and 

c) have available at the pool when on duty the certificate 
referred to in clause (b) or a copy thereof certified by the 
operator and permit the owner, the certificate at any 
time.  R.R.O. 1990, Reg. 565, s. 17 (6); O. Reg. 270/99, s. 1 (2); 
O. Reg. 109/23, s. 1 (2). 

Flow meter • calculates turnover rate of the water  
• 15 per cent of the total volume of the pool water must be 
withdrawn from the pool (via skimmers or gutter) daily and 
discharged to waste drains 

 

mailto:aquinn@powassan.net
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/900565


 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Recommendations 

Recirculation pump (for a commercial sized pool) 
 

•Pulls water from the pool and pushes it through the filter 
or it pulls the water through the filter and pushes it back to 
the pool.  
• Must be capable of pumping enough water through the 
system to provide the required number of turnovers each 
day 

Automatic Sensing Device/automatic feeders • monitors the sanitizers ability to work at an efficient and 
effective level  
• chemical feeder that has valves controlled by electronic 
equipment to deliver adequate amounts of chemical to 
ensure the pool is disinfected 
• manual tests conducted 1/2 hour before opening and 
every four hours, rather than testing every 2 hours with no 
automatic sensing device 

 
If you have any questions regarding the requirements and recommendations, please contact me at 705-474-
1400 ext.5204. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Melissa Watson C.P.H.I. (C) 
Public Health Inspector 
 
 



 

 

COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

Date: 
 
 

October 12th. 2023 

To: 
 
 

Clerk, A. Quinn 

From: 
 
 

Councillor Hall 

Re: 
 
 

Municipal Facility Renumera�on for 2024 Budget year. 

 

Recommenda�on:   

 
This should be classed as previous business. 
 
A process needs to be developed for the 2024 Municipal Budget to start recouping costs associated with the 
opera�on of our Municipal Facili�es currently operated by other organiza�ons.  
 
Council needs to direct Staff. 
 

 

Background / Ra�onale: 

 
This topic has come to Council numerous �mes, resul�ng in discussion on developing agreements which I 
believe is supported by Council and then does not move forward as Council fails to direct Staff. 
 

 



 

 

COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

Date: 
 
 

October 12th, 2023 

To: 
 
 

Clerk, A. Quinn 

From: 
 
 

Councillor Hall 

Re: 
 
 

Finalize Plan re: Trout Creek Community Centre Revitaliza�on 

 

Recommenda�on:   

This should be classed as previous business. 
 
An ac�on plan needs to be developed now so the founda�on costs can be budgeted for in the 2024 
Municipal Budget and the process can begin to move forward. 

 

Background / Ra�onale: 

Through many years of oversight, not doing iden�fied maintenance and lack of an official long-term plan by 
the Municipality, the Trout Creek Community Centre has fallen into a state of required repairs and upgrades. 
 
The required repairs, structural and roof membrane need to be done to facilitate the future use of the venue 
by the public and to prevent the facility from falling into a worse condi�on. The ball diamond, fencing, 
children’s playground, and some outbuildings are also in need of maintenance and repair.  
 
Other upgrades (or repairs) are required to meet the accessible standards of the Province of Ontario. 
 
These same issues with more being added annually have been coming forward over the last 5 years that I 
have been on Council, the Trout Creek Community Centre Board and now the Rec Commitee. 
 
Council told the Trout Creek Community Board members approximately a year ago, that if both Commitees 
joined as a single en�ty, situa�ons as previously described would be addressed. 
 
Various amounts of monies have been received by the Municipality which needs our percentage to be 
accessible. We need to figure out how we can access these funds. 

 






	6.1 October 17, 2023
	7.1 October 3, 2023 - Minutes
	Regular Council Meeting
	Tuesday, October 3, 2023, at 7:00 pm

	9.1 PSB
	9.2 DSSAB October
	10.1 Memo- Pay Days
	10.2 PW Sweezy
	10.2a Traffic memo a
	10.2b Traffic memo b
	10.3 PW Main St 705
	10.4 Memo - Police Background Check Policy - 101723
	10.5 Memo - Flag and Proclamation Policy - 101323
	10.5a Flag and Proclamation policy updated - 081723
	11.2 2023-24 HUGHES ZBA
	11.3 2023-25 Powassan Official Plan Amendment 2
	THE CONSTITUTIONAL STATEMENT

	12.1 Memo - Municipal Pool - 101323
	12.1a Powassan Lion's Community Class A Pool - non compliance letter - MW
	12.2 Memo - Hall Facilities
	12.3 Memo - Hall TCCC
	14.1 Correspondence bonfield remembrance day
	15 Calendar



